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May 29, 2019 
 
TO: All Responders under RFP No. 19-500521, Golf Operations Manager for 

Sugar Creek Golf Course             
 

FROM: Department of Purchasing and Contracting, DeKalb County, Georgia 
 

ADDENDUM NO. # 1 
 

Request for Proposal (RFP) No. 19-500521, Golf Operations Manager for Sugar Creek 
Golf Course, is hereby amended as follows: 
 

1. Questions and their resulting answers have been received and are detailed below: 
 

A. Question: On pg 15 of 36 of the RFP there are five year projections for proposed revenue 
sharing of golf lessons and pro shop revenue percentage sharing. Is the RFP an annual contract 
with (4) options to renew for a potential contract max of 4 years, or a five year contract with 
the option of four renewal options for a total contract max of twenty years? 

Answer:. This is an Annual Contract with Four (4) Options to Renew for a total Contract 
term of five (5) years. 

 

B. Question: Will DeKalb County be providing merchandise and selecting vendors for the golf 
shop apparel? 
 

Answer:.  This area will be negotiated with the selected contractor. 
 

C. Question: Will DeKalb County be providing the Point of Sale System for the golf operation? 

Answer:.  Yes. 

D. Question: Will DeKalb County be providing historical data and budget 
projections/expectations for the golf operation? 
 

Answer:   Yes; however, the golf course has been closed for two years.  Five years prior 
to that, conditions and rounds of play were below expectation.    
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E. Question: Will DeKalb County be providing the funds for staffing the fifteen employees 
managed by the Golf Operations Manager? 
 

Answer:   Yes; however, there are only five (5) employees anticipated.   They include one 
full-time assistant and four part-time permanent employees at 25 hours a week (each).  
Additional staffing needs will be supplemented by volunteers i.e., golf starter, driving 
range attendant, golf cart services and course rangers. 
 

F. Question: What is the breakdown of full-time, part-time, and volunteers projected for staffing 
for the golf operation? 

Answer: 1 Golf Operations Manager, 1 Golf Assistant Manager, 4 Permanent Part-time 
Golf Attendants: 15 (projected) volunteers 
 

G. Question: Is there a staffing budget - if so will a copy be provided for review prior to deadline 
for receipt of proposals? 
 
 

Answer:   Yes, there is a budget. However; information will not be available prior to 
the proposal deadline. 

 
H. Question: Will these employees be considered county employees and be eligible for county 

benefits? 
 

Answer: The Operations Manager will be under contract with no benefits.  All other 
employees are County employees with appropriate benefits. 
 

I. Question: In the Sample Agreement for Professional Services: Article III. Payment - there is 
reference to "Change Order" and or amendment.  As written, the Chief Executive Officer or 
his/her designee shall have the authority to approve and execute a change order increasing the 
Contract Price up to twenty percent of the original Contract Price not to exceed $100,000. How 
should request for increase be submitted and justified for consideration or approval? 

Answer:   The selected contractor submits its request and justification to the Division 
Manager who will discuss and consider the justification with the selected contractor.  
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